May 10, 2005

Mr. Christopher M. Crane

President and Chief Nuclear Officer
Exelon Nuclear

Exelon Generation Company, LLC
4300 Winfield Road

Warrenville, IL 60555

SUBJECT:  LASALLE COUNTY STATION, UNITS 1 AND 2
NRC INTEGRATED INSPECTION REPORT 05000373/2005002;
05000374/2005002

Dear Mr. Crane:

On March 31, 2005, the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) completed an integrated
inspection at your LaSalle County Station, Units 1 and 2. The enclosed report documents the
results of this inspection discussed on April 5, 2005, with the Site Vice President, Ms. Susan
Landahl, and other members of your staff.

The inspection examined activities conducted under your license as they related to safety and
compliance with the Commission’s rules and regulations and with the conditions of your license.
The inspectors reviewed selected procedures and records, observed activities, and interviewed
personnel.

Based on the results of this inspection, four NRC-identified and three self-revealed findings of
very low safety significance were identified. All of these findings also involved violations of NRC
requirements. However, because the findings associated with these violations were of very low
safety significance and because the issues were entered into the licensee’s corrective action
program, the NRC is treating these issues as Non-Cited Violations in accordance with

Section VI.A.1 of the NRC’s Enforcement Policy. Additionally, two licensee identified violations
are listed in Section 40A7 of this report.

If you contest the subject or severity of any Non-Cited Violation in this report, you should
provide a response within 30 days of the date of this inspection report, with the basis for your
denial, to the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, ATTN: Document Control Desk,
Washington, DC 20555-0001; with copies to the Regional Administrator, U.S. Nuclear
Regulatory Commission, Region Ill, 2443 Warrenville Road, Suite 210, Lisle, IL 60532-4352;
the Director, Office of Enforcement, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC
20555-0001; and the NRC Resident Inspectors’ Office at the LaSalle County Station.



In accordance with 10 CFR 2.390 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy of this letter
and its enclosures will be available electronically for public inspection in the NRC Public
Document Room or from the Publicly Available Records (PARS) component of NRC's
document system (ADAMS). ADAMS is accessible from the NRC Web site at
http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html (the Public Electronic Reading Room).

Sincerely,

/RA/

Bruce L. Burgess, Chief
Branch 2
Division of Reactor Projects
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License Nos.: NPF-11; NPF-18
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SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

IR 05000373/2005002, 05000374/2005002; 01/01/2005 - 03/31/2005; LaSalle County Station,
Units 1 & 2; Fire Protection, Maintenance Risk Assessments and Emergent Work Control,
Post-Maintenance Testing, Access Control to Radiologically Significant Areas, and Identification
and Resolution of Problems Report.

The inspection was conducted by both resident and regional inspectors. The report covers a
3-month period of baseline resident inspection, and announced baseline inspections in
emergency preparedness, radiation protection, and of the inservice inspection program. Seven
Green findings and seven associated non-cited violations (NCVs) were identified. The
significance of most findings is indicated by their color (Green, White, Yellow, Red) using NRC
Inspection Manual Chapter (IMC) 0609 “Significance Determination Process” (SDP). Findings
for which the SDP does not apply may be "Green," or be assigned a severity level after NRC
management review. The NRC's program for overseeing the safe operation of commercial
nuclear power reactors is described in NUREG-1649, "Reactor Oversight Process," Revision 3,
dated July 2000.

A. Inspector-ldentified and Self-Revealing Findings

Cornerstone: Initiating Events

. Green. A finding of very low safety significance was self-revealed when sparks
from hot work associated with the cutting of a 20-inch pipe in the 2B residual
heat removal (RHR) corner room on February 16, 2005, ignited a small pile of
absorbent cleaning material in the room. An associated NCV was also identified
against Technical Specification 5.4.1(c) for failure to follow the existing plant fire
protection procedure related to hot work and ignition control.

The performance deficiency, identified during review of the event, involved two
examples where licensee personnel failed to properly implement the established
plant procedure governing hot work and ignition control. The finding was of
more than minor significance in that it had a direct impact on the cornerstone
objective. Specifically, the licensee’s performance deficiencies were directly
responsible for an actual Class ‘A’ fire in the 2B RHR corner room on

February 16, 2005. Because the finding involved Unit 2 in a cold shutdown
condition, the inspectors determined it to be of very low safety significance
(Green) and within the licensee’s response band. Corrective actions completed
by the licensee include: focused coaching sessions with superintendents and
general foremen of hot work personnel; meetings between the station’s Fire
Marshal and contractor supervision to discuss hot work issues; and focused
coaching sessions with fire watch personnel by contractor management
conveying the message that the fire watch is ultimately responsible for the work
location being and remaining in compliance with fire safety standards. The
finding was determined to involve the cross-cutting aspect of human
performance. (Sections 1R05.2 and 40A4)
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Green. The inspectors identified a finding of very low safety significance and an
associated NCV during review of corrective actions associated with a small fire in
the 2B RHR corner room on February 16, 2005. The inspectors determined that
the licensee had, during several opportunities, failed to take timely and effective
corrective actions with respect to ignition control for hot work. This failure was
determined by the inspectors to be contrary to the requirements of 10 CFR 50,
Appendix B, Criterion XVI, "Corrective Action."

In reviewing corrective actions for 2B RHR corner room fire, the inspectors
identified a performance deficiency regarding inadequate corrective actions
taken to control hot work activities. The inspectors determined that the finding
was of more than minor significance in that it had a direct impact on an objective
for the Initiating Event Cornerstone. The inspectors determined that the finding
impacted minimally on the licensee’s capability to reach and maintain cold
shutdown conditions. Therefore, this finding had very low safety significance
(Green) and was within the licensee's response band. Additional corrective
actions planned by the licensee include a comprehensive common cause
analysis to determine whether or not generic fire protection programmatic
weaknesses exist. (Section 40A2.1)

Green. The inspectors identified a finding of very low safety significance and an
associated NCV during a review of the licensee’s assessment and management
of the risk affiliated with maintenance on the 1A circulating water (CW) pump.
The inspectors’ review revealed that the licensee had failed to recognize and
effectively manage the risk associated with a meter replacement. The meter
was in a circuit that was common to both the 1A CW pump, which was
undergoing planned maintenance, and the 1C CW pump, which was in service.
This failure to effectively assess and manage maintenance risk was determined
by the inspectors to be contrary to the requirements of 10 CFR 50.65(a)(4).

The performance deficiency with this issue was a failure on the part of the
licensee to properly assess and manage the increase in risk from a planned
maintenance evolution. The finding was of more than minor significance in that it
had a direct impact on a Initiating Event Cornerstone objective. Specifically, the
licensee’s failure to properly assess and manage the increase in risk resulted in
a plant transient that challenged the on-watch Operations crew. The inspectors
determined this finding to be of very low safety significance (Green) because the
finding did not contribute to both the likelihood of a transient and the likelihood
that mitigation equipment or functions would not be available. Corrective actions
completed by the licensee include: training to enhance worker proficiency at
performing maintenance risk assessments on energized equipment, assessment
of the existing production risk evaluation sheet used by work planners to
determine if additional clarifications are required, discussion of this type of task
at weekly work management meetings, reinforcement of Operations role in
reviewing work on production risk systems, and evaluation of whether or not
additional actions are required during clearance order preparations to preclude
this type of event. The finding was determined to involve the cross-cutting
aspect of human performance. (Sections 1R13.2 and 40A4)
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Cornerstone: Mitigating Systems

Green. The inspectors identified a finding of very low safety significance and an
associated NCV during a review of the licensee’s assessment and management
of the risk affiliated with the cycling of the 1DG032 manual gate valve. The gate
valve was cycled during the performance of a scheduled ‘0’ emergency diesel
generator (EDG) auxiliaries inservice test on December 30, 2004. The
inspectors’ review revealed that the licensee had failed to recognize and
effectively manage the risk associated with the operation of this valve. This
valve was part of a group of manual gate valves located in essential service
water systems that were known to be highly susceptible to disc/stem separation.
This failure to effectively assess and manage the activity’s risk was determined
by the inspectors to be contrary to the requirements of 10 CFR 50.65(a)(4).

The identified performance deficiency with this finding was a failure on the part of
the licensee to have accurately assessed and properly managed the risk
associated with the cycling of the 1DG032 manual gate valve. The finding was
of more than minor significance in that it had a direct impact on an objective of
the Mitigating Systems cornerstone. Specifically, the licensee’s failure to
properly assess and effectively manage the risk associated with the 1DG032
valve cycling evolution resulted in the interruption of supporting cooling water
flow to Unit 1 Division 1 emergency core cooling system (ECCS) components,
rendering these components inoperable and unavailable. Because the finding
impacted only a single Division of the unit's ECCS; did not represent the loss of
an entire system’s safety function; did not result in a Technical Specification
allowed outage time being exceeded; and the finding was not related to external
events such as fire, flooding, or adverse weather; the inspectors concluded that
the safety significance of this issue was very low (Green). Corrective actions
completed by the licensee include: hanging tags on susceptible valves to warn
personnel of the potential for stem/disc separation; validation of all essential
service water valves susceptible to stem/disc separation and providing a listing
of these components to plant operations; revision of applicable operating
procedures to include a precaution that identifies the valves that are susceptible
to stem/disc separation, and a requirement to verify the applicability of valves
prior to operation. (Section 1R13.3)

Green. A finding of very low safety significance was self-revealed when changes
implemented by a modification to the Unit 2 125 volt direct current (Vdc) charger
system were not appropriately incorporated into operational procedures. This
procedural deficiency resulted in an under-voltage condition during an attempt to
swap in-service chargers. An associated NCV against the requirements of

10 CFR 50, Appendix B, Criterion V, “Instructions, Procedures, and Drawings,”
was also identified.

The identified performance deficiency was the failure of the licensee to
incorporate relevant design information concerning the metering circuitry of a
newly installed battery charger into the appropriate operating procedures. The
finding was of more than minor significance in that it had a direct impact on the
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MS cornerstone objective. Specifically, the procedural deficiency, and lack of
any formal training regarding the metering circuitry, contributed to a low voltage
condition on the Unit 2 Division 1 125 Vdc system. The low voltage resulted in
the Unit 2 Division 1 125 Vdc system being rendered inoperable for about 23
minutes. Because the finding involved the loss of only one train of safety related
equipment and the loss was for less than the Technical Specification allowed
outage time, the inspectors determined it to be of very low safety significance
(Green) and within the licensee’s response band. Corrective actions planned
and completed by the licensee include: revision of applicable operating
procedures; training for operations personnel on new charger procedures; and
planned training to enhance operator knowledge regarding the metering circuitry
and the differences between various battery chargers. (Section 1R19.2)

. Green. A finding of very low safety significance was identified by the inspectors.
The licensee had failed during prior opportunities to fully evaluate the nature of
the problem leading to various emergency diesel generator (EDG) reverse power
trips. The most recent of these events were a reverse power trip of the 2B EDG
on August 18, 2004, for which no root cause was ever determined, and a
subsequent reverse power trip of the 2A EDG that occurred on December
7,2004. An associated Non-Cited Violation (NCV) of 10 CFR 50, Appendix B,
Criterion XVI, "Corrective Action," was also identified by the inspectors.

The performance deficiency was determined to be a failure on the part of the
licensee’s staff to fully evaluate a long standing issue with EDG reverse power
trip. An evaluation in response to an event, as recent as August 18, 2004, failed
to give sufficient priority to identified corrective actions in a manner that would
preclude the latest occurrence, a reverse power trip of the 2A EDG on
December 7, 2004. The finding was of more than minor significance in that it
had a direct impact on the cornerstone objective. Specifically, the inspectors
concluded that the licensee's performance deficiency was responsible for the
reverse power trip of the 2A EDG on December 7, 2004, which caused the EDG
to be unavailable for an additional 26 hours. Because the finding involved the
loss of only one train of safety related equipment and the loss was for less than
the Technical Specification allowed outage time, the inspectors determined it to
be of very low safety significance (Green) and within the licensee's response
band. Corrective actions planned and completed by the licensee include:
establishment of a less restrictive EDG load limit to allow opening the EDG
output breaker when the load is less than approximately 500 kW; additional
training for licensed operators in the areas of EDG theory and operation and the
effects of reverse power conditions on diesel generators; and revision of
simulator modeling for EDGs to more accurately reflect actual plant performance
for reverse power trips. (Section 40A2.2)

Cornerstone: Occupational Radiation Safety
. Green. A finding of very low safety significance was self-revealed when an

electrician improperly entered a high radiation area (HRA) in the radiation
controlled area (RCA) (the Unit 2 drywell) that was posted as a HRA. This
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occurrence was revealed when he exited the RCA and the electronic dosimeter
check-out was alerted that a dose rate alarm had occurred during the entry,
revealing that the individual had signed on to the wrong radiation work permit
(RWP).

The cause of the error was a failure to assure through self-checking that each
entry to the electronic RWP sign-in is made using the correct RWP. The finding,
under the Occupational Radiation Safety Cornerstone, does not involve the
application of traditional enforcement because it did not result in actual safety
consequences or potential to impact the NRC’s regulatory function, and was not
the result of any willful actions. The finding was more than minor as it involves
the failure of the licensee to adhere to procedures to monitor and control
radiation exposure, a key attribute under the objective of the radiation safety
cornerstone to ensure adequate protection of worker health and safety from
exposure to radiation. The finding is of very low safety significance because the
individual was using an electronic dosimeter that alarms to warn workers of
higher than expected dose rates or accumulated dose. The issue constituted a
Non-Cited Violation of Technical Specification 5.7.1, which requires that access
to, and activities in, each HRA with dose rates not exceeding 1.0 rem per hour at
30 centimeters from the radiation source be controlled by means of a RWP that
includes specification of radiation dose rates in the immediate work area and
other appropriate radiation protection equipment and measures. Immediate
corrective actions included locking the individual out of the RCA and initiation of
an investigation. Additionally, all site personnel were notified of this event
through a station safety alert. The primary cause of the finding was related to
the cross-cutting area of human performance. (Sections 20S1.4 and 40A4)

Licensee-ldentified Violations

Violations of very low safety significance that were identified by the licensee have been
reviewed by inspectors. Corrective actions planned or taken by the licensee have been
entered into the licensee’s corrective action program. These violations and corrective
action tracking numbers are listed in Section 40A7 of this report.
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REPORT DETAILS

Summary of Plant Status

Unit 1

The unit began the inspection period operating at full power. On February 5, 2005, power was
reduced to approximately 65 percent to permit a control rod sequence exchange and control
rod surveillance testing. The unit returned to operation at full power on February 6, 2005, and
continued operating at or near full power for the remainder of the inspection period.

Unit 2

The unit began the inspection period operating at full power. On January 8, 2005, power was
reduced to approximately 62 percent for a control rod pattern adjustment. Operation at full
power was resumed on January 10, 2005. On February 7, 2005, the unit shut down for
refueling outage L2R10. Unit 2 Cycle 11 achieved initial criticality following L2R10 on

March 15, 2005, with full power being attained on March 18, 2005. On March 22, 2005, power
was reduced briefly to approximately 65 percent to permit a control rod sequence exchange
and control rod surveillance testing. The unit returned to full power operation later that same
day, and continued operating at or near full power for the remainder of the inspection period.

1. REACTOR SAFETY

Cornerstones: Initiating Events, Mitigating Systems, Barrier Integrity, and
Emergency Preparedness

1R01 Adverse Weather (71111.01)

Review of Site Specific Weather Condition — Tornado Warning

a. Inspection Scope

The inspectors performed an assessment of the licensee’s preparations for adverse
weather, including conditions that could lead to loss of off-site power and other
conditions that could result from high winds or tornado-generated missiles. The
licensee’s procedures and preparations during a tornado warning in LaSalle County on
March 30, 2005, were reviewed by the inspectors and were verified to be adequate.
During the inspection, the inspectors focused on plant specific design features and the
licensee’s procedures used to respond to specified adverse weather conditions.
Additionally, the inspectors reviewed the Updated Final Safety Analysis Report (UFSAR)
and performance requirements for systems selected for inspection, and verified that
operator actions were appropriate as specified by plant specific procedures.

This review constituted a single inspection sample.
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1R04

Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

Equipment Alignment (71111.04)

Semiannual Complete System Alignment Verification

Inspection Scope

Due to the system’s risk significance, the inspectors selected the Unit 1 core standby
cooling system (CSCS) for a complete system alignment verification. The inspectors
walked down the system to verify mechanical and electrical equipment lineups,
component labeling, component lubrication, component and equipment cooling, hangers
and supports, operability of support systems, and to ensure that ancillary equipment or
debris did not interfere with equipment operation.

The inspectors’ review of CSCS alignment constituted a single inspection sample.
Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

Quarterly Partial System Alignment Verifications

Inspection Scope

The inspectors performed partial alignment verifications on the following equipment
trains to verify operability and proper equipment lineup. These systems were selected
based upon risk significance, plant configuration, system work or testing, or inoperable
or degraded conditions.

. Unit 2 fuel pool cooling system while unit fuel pools were cross connected
. Unit 2 ‘B’ residual heat removal low pressure core spray system
. Unit 2 ‘C’ residual heat removal low pressure core spray system

The inspectors verified the position of critical redundant equipment and looked for any
discrepancies between the existing equipment lineups and the required lineups.

These partial equipment alignment verifications constituted three inspection samples.
Findings

No findings of significance were identified.
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1R05 Fire Protection (71111.05)

A

a.

Quarterly Fire Protection Zone Inspections

Inspection Scope

To identify potential fire protection issues, the inspectors conducted field observations in
the following risk significant areas. These areas were selected because of the systems,
structures, or components designated as important to reactor safety that were located
therein.

. Fire Zone 4E1, Unit 1 auxiliary equipment room

. Fire Zone 4E3, Unit 1 Division 2 essential switchgear room

. Fire Zone 4F1, Unit 1 Division 1 essential switchgear room

. Fire Zone 4F2, Unit 2 Division 1 electrical switchgear room

. Fire Zone 8B1, Unit 2 Division 3 emergency diesel generator room

. Fire Zone 8B2, Unit 2 Division 2 emergency diesel generator room

. Fire Zone 8C1, Unit 2 Division 3 emergency diesel generator fuel storage tank
room

. Fire Zone 8C3, Unit 2 Division 3 emergency diesel generator cooling water pump
room

. Unit 2 emergency diesel generator corridor

The inspectors reviewed the control of transient combustibles and ignition sources, fire
detection equipment, manual suppression capabilities, passive suppression capabilities,
automatic suppression capabilities, barriers to fire propagation, and any contingency fire
watches that were in effect.

These quarterly fire protection inspections constituted nine inspection samples.
Findings

No findings of significance were identified.

2B Residual Heat Removal (RHR) Corner Room Fire

Inspection Scope

The inspectors followed up on a small Class ‘A’ fire that occurred in the 2B RHR corner
room as a result of hot work on February 16, 2005. The inspectors reviewed the control
of transient combustibles and ignition sources, fire detection equipment, manual
suppression capabilities, passive suppression capabilities, automatic suppression
capabilities, barriers to fire propagation, and any contingency fire watches that were in
effect. In addition, the inspectors reviewed the licensee’s apparent cause evaluation
(ACE) for the event.

This review constituted a single inspection sample.
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Findings
Introduction

A finding of very low safety significance (Green) was self-revealed when sparks from hot
work associated with the cutting of a 20-inch pipe in the 2B RHR corner room ignited a
small pile of absorbent cleaning material in the room. A Non-Cited Violation (NCV) of
Technical Specification 5.4.1(c) for failure to follow the existing plant fire protection
procedure related to hot work and ignition control was also identified.

A second finding and NCV associated with this event are described in Section 40A2.1
of this report.

Description

On February 16, 2005, at approximately 2:30 p.m., work was in progress in the 2B RHR
corner room to demolish a section of pipe that was slated for removal as part of an
approved permanent plant modification. The work involved cutting a vertical run of
20-inch diameter pipe into sections that were approximately 1 foot in length to facilitate
ease of removal. A single fire watch was assigned to the area where the cutting was
taking place. Fire blanketing was placed in the area of the hot work, with additional
material surrounding the floor piping penetration to prevent sparks from falling through
the penetration. This fire blanket extended outward for approximately 8 feet from the
work. During the course of the work, some of the sparks generated by the pipe cutting
activities were thrown past the fire blanket and fell through open floor grating to the
694' elevation below.

At some point following lunch, cleaning material was staged on the 694" elevation below
the area where the hot work was in progress. When interviewed as part of the
licensee’s ACE, the fire watch stated that he was not aware of the introduction of this
combustible material to this area. Sparks that fell from the hot work above ignited a
small Class ‘A’ fire in this material. A laborer in the area detected the fire and attempted
to extinguish it by stepping on the flames. When this was not successful, a mop was
used in an attempt to smother the flames. When this action, too, proved ineffective, the
laborer notified the fire watch on the level above, who extinguished the fire with a dry
chemical fire extinguisher. The control room was notified of the fire by the personnel
involved in the 2B RHR corner room.

Unrelated to the actual fire itself, a problem was encountered with the dry chemical fire
extinguisher used by the fire watch to combat the fire. In addition to being discharged
from the nozzle as expected, dry chemical extinguishing agent was observed to emit
from underneath the cap of the extinguisher. As noted above, despite this malfunction,
the fire watch was able to use the extinguisher to successfully combat the fire. An
investigation by the licensee subsequently determined that the malfunction was the
result of a missing gasket normally installed under the fire extinguisher cap.
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Analysis

The inspectors determined that there was a licensee performance deficiency associated
with the fire blanket coverage provided for the job. Specifically, the coverage was
inadequate in that it did not fully contain all the sparks being generated from the cutting
activity, and was not in compliance with the licensee’s established procedure governing
hot work ignition controls. Procedure OP-MW-201-004, “Fire Prevention for Hot Work,”
Section 4.2, “Fire Prevention Precautions,” required fire blanket coverage out to 35 feet
from the work location. In this event, the fire blanket coverage went out a mere 8 feet.
This lack of adequate fire blanket coverage was, in part, responsible for the sparks from
the hot work reaching the open floor grating and falling to the 694" elevation below.

In addition, a second performance deficiency associated with the duties of the fire watch
was identified. Procedure OP-MW-201-004, Section 3.4.2, discussed the duties of the
fire watch, and required that each fire watch was responsible for stopping the hot work
in the event of any safety problems, such as sparks coming in contact with combustible
material, etc. At the time of the fire, the hot work in the 2B RHR corner room had been
in progress for three shifts. The fire watches assigned to the job 